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RESCO GLOBAL WIND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
 (CIN: U40106GJ2020PTC112187) 

Registered Office: 301, ABS Tower Old Padra Road, Vadodara 390007, Gujarat 
Telephone: 0265 6198111, Fax: 0265 2310312 

Email id: investors.iwl@inoxwind.com 
 

NOTICE 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Third Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of 
Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited will be held at the Corporate Office of the 
Company situated at INOXGFL Towers, Plot No. 17, Sector-16A, Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh on 
Friday, the 29th September, 2023 at 11:00 A.M. to transact the following business:  
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. Adoption of Financial Statements 

 
To receive, consider and adopt: 

 
a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended                       

31st March, 2023, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and 
 

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31st March, 2023 and the report of the Auditors thereon 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Mukesh Manglik (DIN: 07001509) who retires 

by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) consent of the 
Members of Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Shri Mukesh Manglik 
(DIN: 07001509) who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible who 
offered himself for re-appointment, as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
3. Appointment of Shri Nitesh Kumar (DIN: 10132028) as a Director 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), as amended from time to time, Shri Nitesh 
Kumar (DIN: 10132028) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of 
the Company with effect from 25th April, 2023 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorised to do all such acts and take all steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give 
effect to this Resolution.” 

  
By Order of the Board of Directors 

 
 
 Uday Shankar Prasad  
Date: 29th July, 2023 Company Secretary 
Place: Noida       ICSI Membership No:28282 



 

 

Notes: 

 
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING (“MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL ONLY INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the 
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 
 

2. A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 
FIFTY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT 
(10%) OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. HOWEVER, A 
MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT (10%), OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A 
SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR 
ANY OTHER PERSON OR MEMBER. 

 
3. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect 

to the Special Business as mentioned in the Notice is annexed hereto.  
 

4.   Appointment / Re-appointment of Directors: 
 

The information required to be provided as per the Secretarial Standard (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India in respect of Directors/s being appointed / re-appointed 
is given herein below:  
 

Name of Director Shri Mukesh Manglik Shri Nitesh Kumar 

Date of Birth and Age 16th September, 1951  
(71 Years) 

12th March, 1970 (53 Years) 

Date of first appointment 
on the Board 

20th January, 2020 
 

25th April, 2023 

Directors Identification 
Number 

07001509 
 

10132028 

Qualification Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical 
Engineering from Veermata 
Jijabai Technological Institute, 
Mumbai 

Bachelor’s of Technology in 
Mechanical from Bihar Institute 
of Technology and M.Tech in 
Fuel Technology from Indian 
School of Mines, Dhanbad 
(Jharkhand). He had also done 
Masters of Business 
Administration in Finance from 
Sam Higginbottom Institute of 
Agriculture, Technology & 
Sciences, Allahabad. 

Experience/ Expertise in 
Specific Functional Area 

He possesses more than four 
decades of experience in the 
field of design and 
development of power 
electronics & process controls 
including over two decades of 
experience in the wind 
industry with expertise in 
engineering, operations, 
maintenance and 
commissioning of wind turbine 
generators 
 

He had more than 28 years of 
experience in the field of EPC, 
Project Management, 
Construction, Planning, 
Sourcing and Customer 
Management. 
 



Directorship held in other 
Companies 

• Inox Wind Limited 
• Inox Green Energy Services 

Limited  
• Suswind Power Private 

Limited  
• Ripudaman Urja Private 

Limited  
• Vibhav Energy Private 

Limited  
• Tempest Wind Energy 

Private Limited  
• Flurry Wind Energy Private 

Limited 
• RBRK Investments Limited 
• Marut-Shakti Energy India 

Limited  
 

• Sarayu Wind Power 
(Kondapuram) Private 
Limited  

Membership / 
Chairmanship of other 
Companies 

Inox Wind Limited: 
• Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, 
Member 

• Business Responsibility 
Committee, Member 

• IWL Committee of the Board 
of Directors for Operations, 
Member 

Inox Green Energy 
Services Limited:  
• Audit Committee, Member  
• Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee, 
Chairman  

• IGESL Committee of the 
Board of Directors for 
Operations, Member 

 

Nil 

The Number of Meeting of 
the Board attended during 
the financial year 2022-23 

24 Nil 

Remuneration last drawn Nil  
 

NA 

Relationship with other 
Directors, Manager and 
other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company  

Nil Nil 

Shareholding in the 
Company 

Holds 10 equity shares as 
Nominee of Inox Wind 
Limited 

 

Nil 

 
5. Members desiring any relevant information on the accounts at the Annual General Meeting 

are requested to write to Shri Uday Shankar Prasad, Company Secretary at least seven days in 
advance at its Corporate Office, so as to enable the Company to keep the information ready. 

 
6. Members/ Proxies are requested to bring their filled in Attendance Slip and their copy of 

Annual Report to the Meeting. 
 

7. Corporate Members intending to send their Authorised Representative(s) to attend the 
Annual General Meeting are requested to send duly certified copy of the Board Resolution 
authorizing such representative(s) to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 

 



8. The relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of Meeting are open for       
inspection by the Members of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company on all 
working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) between 11.00 a.m. to 01.00 
p.m. upto the date of this Meeting and copies thereof shall also be available for inspection at 
the Corporate Office of the Company situated at INOXGFL Towers, Plot No. 17, Sector-16A, 
Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh. 
 

9. The Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map of AGM are annexed to this notice. 
 
 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



THE STAEMENT UNDER SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

ITEM No. 3 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on 25th April, 2023 appointed Shri 
Nitesh Kumar (DIN: 10132028) as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 25th April, 
2023. As per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), he holds office as an 
Additional Director up to the date of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) and is eligible for 
appointment as a Director of the Company. The Company has received requisite notice under Section 
160 of the Act from a member proposing the name of Shri Nitesh Kumar as a candidate for the office 
of Director of the Company at this AGM of the Company. Shri Nitesh Kumar has given a declaration to 
the Board that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the 
Act and has given his consent to act as a Director. The Board of Directors of the Company has 
recommended appointment of Shri Nitesh Kumar as a Director of the Company liable to retire by 
rotation. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and Rules framed 
there under for his appointment. The resolution regarding appointment of Shri Nitesh Kumar as a 
Director of the Company is being placed before the Members for their approval as set out at Item No. 
3 of the Notice. 
 
Brief resume of Shri Nitesh Kumar, nature of his experience in specific functional areas and names of 
companies in which he holds Directorships and Memberships/ Chairmanships of Board Committees, 
shareholding and relationships between Directors inter-se and other information as required to be 
provided under the Secretarial Standard -2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India in 
respect of his appointment are provided in the Notice.  
 
Shri Nitesh Kumar is interested in the Resolution set out at Item Nos. 3 of the Notice. The relatives of 
Shri Nitesh Kumar may also be deemed to be interested in these Resolution to the extent of their 
shareholding interest, if any, in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the other Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution as set out at Item No. 3.  
 
The Board recommends the resolution as stated at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of the 
Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 

 
 

 By Order of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 Uday Shankar Prasad  
Date: 29th July, 2023 Company Secretary 
Place: Noida       ICSI Membership No:28282 
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PROXY FORM 
 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
 

3rd Annual General Meeting – 29th September, 2023 
 

Name of the 
Member(s)       

:  

   

Registered Address                :  

   

E-mail ID                                  :  

   

Folio No./ Client ID :                

   

DP ID :                

 

 

I/ We, being the Member(s) of __________________________ shares of the above named 
Company, hereby appoint  

 

Name: 
________________________________ 

E-mail 
ID:________________________________ 

Address:________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________ Signature:___________________________ 

Or failing him/ her 

Name: 
__________________________________ 

E-mail 
ID:___________________________ 

Address:_______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________ Signature:_____________________ 

Or failing him/ her 

Name: 
__________________________________ 

E-mail 
ID:________________________________ 

Address:________________________________________________________________  

 

___________                                                                        Signature:______________________    

  



 

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 3rd Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 29th September, 2023 at 11:00 A.M. at 
INOXGFL Towers, Plot No. 17, Sector-16A, Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh and at any adjournment 
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below. 

Resolution  

Number 

Resolution Vote (Optional see 
Note 2)(Please mention 
no. of shares) 

For Against Abstain 

Ordinary Business: 

1. Adoption of the Audited Standalone & Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st 

March, 2023, the reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. (Ordinary Resolution) 

   

2. Appointment of Director in place of Shri Mukesh Manglik, 
who retires by rotation and, being eligible, seek                                     
re-appointment. (Ordinary Resolution) 

   

Special Business: 

3. Appointment of Shri Nitesh Kumar (DIN: 10132028) as a 
Director (Ordinary Resolution) 

   

 

Signed this _____________day of _____________2023.  

 

____________________                                     _________________________ 

Signature of Shareholder    Signature of Proxy Holder(s) 

 

 

Notes:  

1. This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the ‘For’, ‘Against’ or ‘Abstain’ column blank 
against any or all of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may 
deem appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Affix a 
Revenue 
Stamp 
not less 
than Re. 1 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

3rd Annual General Meeting, Friday, 29th September, 2023 at 11.00 A.M. 
 
 

Regd. Folio No._______/DP ID___________Client ID/Ben. A/C____________No.of shares 
held______ 
 
I certify that I am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company and 
hereby record my presence at the 3rd Annual General Meeting of the Company on Friday, 29th 
September, 2023 at 11.00 A.M. at Plot No. 17, INOXGFL Towers, Sector-16A, Noida-201301, Uttar 
Pradesh 
 
___________________________                                         ________________________ 
 
Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters           Member’s/Proxy’s Signature 
 
Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 
 
  



Route Map 
 

 
 
 

INOXGFL Towers, Plot No. 17, Sector-16A, Noida-201301 (U.P.) 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

RESCO GLOBAL WIND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
 (CIN: U40106GJ2020PTC112187) 

Registered Office: 301, ABS Tower Old Padra Road, Vadodara 390007, Gujarat 
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Email id: investors.iwl@inoxwind.com 
 
 

BOARD’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of  
Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited  
 
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting to you their Third Annual Report of your Company 
together with Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year 31st March, 2023. 
 
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 

The financial performance of your Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 is 
highlighted below: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

*not applicable due to exemption provided under Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

2. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

As per applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”) 
and the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 have been prepared in 
compliance with applicable Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other recognized accounting practices and policies to the extent 
applicable and on the basis of Audited Financial Statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and 
associate companies, as approved by the respective Board of Directors. 

 
The Consolidated Financial Statements together with the Auditor’s Reports form part of this 
Annual Report. The Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial 
Year 2022-23 shall be laid before the Annual General Meeting for approval of the Members of the 
Company. 

S. 
No. 

Particulars Standalone  Consolidated 

  
 

 2022-23   2021-22  2022-23 2021-22* 

I. Revenue from Operations 
(Net of Taxes) 

5,430.85 2917.91 5,531.00 - 

II. Other Income 1,024.86 257.52 403.95 - 

III. Total Revenue (I+II) 6,455.71 3175.43 5,935.23 - 

IV. Total Expenses 14,723.56 11,415.68 14,842.84 - 

V. Profit/ (Loss) before 
tax (III -IV) 

- (8,240.25) (8,907.61) - 

VI. Total tax expense - - - - 

VII. Profit/ (Loss) after tax 
for the period/ year 
(V+VI) 

(8,267.85) (8,240.25) (8,907.61) - 

VIII. Total Other Comprehensive 
income (Net of Tax) 

9.42 (18.00) 9.42 - 

IX. Total Comprehensive 
income for the period 
comprising Net Profit/ 
(Loss) for the Period & 
Other Comprehensive 
Income (VII+VIII) 

(8,258.43) (8,258.25) (8,898.19) - 



 

 

3. DIVIDEND 
 
 As there are no profits, no dividend has been recommended by the Board of Directors for the year 

ended 31st March, 2023. 
 
4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
   
 During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves. 
 
5. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
  

Appointments/ Resignations during the year under review and upto the date of this report: 
 
Shri Mukesh Manglik (DIN: 07001509) liable to retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.   
             
Shri Manjit Gurdas Ram Bhagria (DIN:08673991), Director of the Company resigned from the 
Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 31st March, 2023 due to personal reasons. 
 
Shri Nitesh Kumar (DIN: 10132028) was appointed as an Additional of the Company w.e.f. 25th 
April, 2023 by the Board of Directors, who holds office upto the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
(AGM). The resolution as set out in the Notice for 3rd AGM regarding appointment of Shri Nitesh 
Kumar as a Director of the Company is being placed before the members for their approval.   
 
Necessary resolution in respect of Director seeking appointment and his brief resume pursuant to 
Secretarial Standard -2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is provided in the 
Notice of the Annual General Meeting forming part of this Annual Report. 

 
      Particulars of shares held by Non-Executive Directors 
 

Name of Non-Executive Director No of shares 
held 

% of total share 
holding 

Shri Mukesh Manglik 
 

10* 
 

0.01 
 

Shri Nitesh Kumar Nil Nil 

  *hold shares as nominee of Inox Wind Limited 
 
6. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 
 During the year under review, the Board met 24 (Twenty-Four) times on the following dates-7th 

April, 2022, 26th April, 2022, 6th May, 2022, 26th May, 2022, 27th May, 2022, 24th June, 2022, 10th 
August, 2022, 1st November, 2022, 5th November, 2022, 7th November, 2022, 1st December, 2022, 
1st December, 2022, 7th December, 2022, 17th December, 2022, 29th December, 2022, 13th January, 
2023, 30th January, 2023, 9th February, 2023, 24th February, 2023, 6th March, 2023, 9th March, 
2023, 23rd March, 2023, 24th March, 2023 and 28th March, 2023.   

 
  The intervening gap between the two Meetings was within the time limit prescribed under Section 

173 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
      
7. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS PER SUB-SECTION (5) OF 

SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
       

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
obtained by your Directors, they make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of 
the Companies Act, 2013: 

 
i. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been 

followed and there are no departures from the requirements of the Accounting Standards; 
 



 

 

ii. the Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the 
Company for that period; 

 
iii. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

iv. the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;  
 

v. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
8. PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN 

AND SECURITIES PROVIDED 
 

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with 
the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient 
are provided in the Financial Statements of the Company. Please refer to Note Nos. 7, 8 and 35 to 
the Financial Statements of the Company. 

 
9. CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 

All transactions entered with Related Parties during the year under review were on arm’s length 
basis and in the ordinary course of business.  Further, there are no material related party 
transactions during the year under review. Hence disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. 

 
10. DEPOSITS 

 
      The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 

 
11. SHARES, CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES AND DEBENTURES 

 
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 1st April, 2022 stood at Rs. 50,01,00,000 
(Rupees Fifty Crore and One Lakh only) divided into 5,00,10,000 (Five Crore and Ten Thousand) 
equity shares of Rs.10 each. 
  
During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased as 
detailed below: 

(Amount in Rs.) 
Date of approval by the 

Shareholders 
Amount by which 

Authorised Share Capital 
increased  

Cumulative Authorised 
Capital 

25th November, 2022 (EGM) 60,00,00,000 110,01,00,000 

10th January, 2023 (EGM) 25,99,00,000 136,00,00,000 

 
 

The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 1st April, 2022 stood at Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One 
Lakh only) divided into 10,000 (Ten Thousand) equity share of Rs.10 each. 
 
During the year under review, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company was increased from: 
  

• Rs. 1,00,000 to Rs. 50,01,00,000 by issuance of 5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to 
Inox Wind Limited, Promoter & Holding Company, at a premium of Rs. 10 for cash 
consideration through Right Issue on 26th April, 2022; 

• Rs. 50,01,00,000 to Rs.1,09,26,15,000 by issuance of 5,92,51,500 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
to Inox Wind Limited, Promoter & Holding Company, at a premium of Rs. 10 for cash 
consideration through Right Issue on 7th December, 2022; and 



 

 

• Rs.1,09,26,15,000 to Rs.134,26,15,000 by issuance of 2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
to Inox Wind Limited, Promoter & Holding Company, at a premium of Rs. 10 through 
Preferential Issue for consideration other than cash on 13th January, 2023. 

 
Post above allotments the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 stood at 
Rs.134,26,15,000 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty-Four Crore Twenty-Six Lakh and Fifteen Thousand 
only) divided into 13,42,61,500 (Thirteen Crore Forty-Two Lakh Sixty-One Thousand and Five 
Hundred) equity shares of Rs.10 each.  

 
DEBENTURES 
 
During the year under review, the Company made the following allotment of debentures on private 
placement basis: 

 
S.No Debenture description Date of 

allotment 
Amount raised 

1. 500-10.25% Unsecured, Rated, Unlisted, 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of 
face value of Rs.10,00,000 each. 
 

7th November, 
2022 

Rs. 50.00 Crore 

2. 20,000-10.75% Unsecured, Rated, Listed 
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures 
of face value of Rs.1,00,000 each. 
 

23rd March, 2023 Rs.200.00 Crore 

3. 10,000-10.00% Unsecured, Rated, Unlisted 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of 
face value of Rs.1,00,000 each. 
 

28th March, 2023 Rs.100.00 Crore 

 
Post the closure of period under review, the company had on 3rd May, 2023 allotted 10,000-
10.00% Unsecured, Rated, Unlisted Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of 
Rs.1,00,000 each aggregating to Rs.100.00 Crore.  

   
12. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES INCLUDING JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE 

COMPANIES 
 

The Report on the performance and financial position of each of the Subsidiaries, Associates and 
Joint Ventures of the Company, in Form AOC-1, pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of 
Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
annexed to this report as Annexure A.  

 
13. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

 
The Company has adequate internal controls with reference to the financial statements 
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.  

 
14. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
There are no reservations, qualifications or adverse remarks in the Independent Auditor’s Report. 
The notes forming part of the accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
clarifications under Section 134 (3) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
15. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

 
The Members of the Company at their 1st Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 28th September, 
2021 have appointed M/s. Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 
No. 000472N) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 1st AGM 
till the conclusion of 6th AGM. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing 
as Auditors of the Company. 
 



 

 

16. COST AUDITORS 
 
The Company is not required to appoint Cost Auditors since the provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the Company. 

 
17. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

 
In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board had appointed 
M/s. NSP & Associates, Company Secretaries, (Membership No.9028) Ghaziabad to conduct 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.  
 
The Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. NSP & Associates, Company Secretaries, in Form MR-3, for 
the Financial Year 2022-23 is annexed to this report as Annexure B. There are no qualifications, 
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers in their Secretarial Audit Report. 
 
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the requirements of applicable 
provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 
18. REPORTING OF FRAUDS 

 
During the year under review, no instance of fraud was reported by the Auditors under Section 
143(12) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder to the Board of Directors or to the Central 
Government. Therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the 
Companies Act 

 
19. STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS  

 
This year was the 3rd year of operations of your Company. The profit/ (loss) after tax is Rs. 
(8,267.25) Lakhs for the year as compared to Rs. (8,240.25) Lakh last year. 

 
20. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 

Information in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in the manner prescribed, is annexed to this report as 
Annexure C. 
 

21. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
The disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 are as under:  
 
Rule 5(1)(i) and (ii): Not Applicable as no remuneration was paid to any of the Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel during the year under review. 
 
Rule 5(iii): Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees is Nil. 
 
Rule 5 (iv): The number of permanent Employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 
2023 was 90. 
 
Rule 5(viii): Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 
managerial personnel is Nil. 
 
Rule 5(xii): Not Applicable. 
 
During the Financial Year under review no employees in the Company drawing remuneration in 
excess of the limits prescribed in Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 



 

 

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES ACTIVITIES 
 
The Company is not covered under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
23. SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
Safety, health and environment have been of prime concern to the Company and necessary efforts 
were made in this direction in line with the safety, health and environment policy laid down by the 
Company. Health of employees is being regularly monitored and environment has been 
maintained as per statutory requirements. 

 
24. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board about the risk assessment and 
minimization procedures to review key elements of risks viz regulatory, legal, competition and 
financial risks involved and measures taken to ensure that risk is controlled by means of a properly 
defined framework. In the Board’s view, there are no material risks, which may threaten the 
existence of the Company. 
 

25. ANNUAL RETURN 
 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the copy of the Annual Return for the Financial Year 
2022-23, in Form MGT -7, has been placed on the Company’s website and the same can be 
accessed at https://www.rescowind.com/img/MGT-7_2022-23_Resco.pdf . 
 
 

26. INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
As there were no female employees in the Company during the year under review, the information 
to be given under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 is not applicable. 

 
27. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE      

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN 
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 
 
There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial 
Statements relate and the date of this report. 

 
28. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 
 
There are no orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern             
status and company’s operations in future. 

 
29. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 
No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions relating to these items during the year under review: 
  
i. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;  

ii. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any 
scheme;  

iii. The Company does not have any joint venture.  

https://www.rescowind.com/img/MGT-7_2022-23_Resco.pdf


 

 

iv. During the year under review, there are no applications made or any proceeding pending 
against the Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).  

v. During the year under review, there are no instances of one-time settlement with any banks or 
financial institutions. 

        
30. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
Your Directors express their gratitude to all stakeholders for the assistance, co-operation and 
guidance received. 

 
                

 By order of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 

 Nitesh Kumar            Mukesh Manglik 
Date: 29th July, 2023 Director Director 
Place: Noida DIN: 10132028 DIN: 07001509 

                      
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Annexure A 
 

Form AOC - 1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ 
associate companies/ joint venture 
 
Part A - Subsidiaries 
 
 Marut-

Shakti 
Energy India 
Limited 

Satviki 
Energy 
Private 
Limited 

Sarayu Wind 
Power 
(Tallimadugula) 
Private Limited 

Vinirrmaa 
Energy 
Generation 
Private 
Limited 

Sarayu Wind 
Power 
(Kondapuram) 
Private Limited 

RBRK 
Investments 
Limited 

Sr. No. 1 2 3 4 5 6 

The date 
since when 
the 
subsidiary 
was acquired 

29/10/2021 29/10/2021 29/10/2021 29/10/2021 29/10/2021 29/10/2021 

Reporting 
period, if 
different 
from the 
holding 
Company* 

      

Reporting 
currency and 
exchange rate 
as on the last 
date of the 
relevant 
financial year 
in case of 
foreign 
subsidiaries 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Share Capital 61,10,700 83,50,000 1,00,000 5,00,000 1,00,000 7,00,000 
Reserves and 
Surplus 

(27,09,45,031) (11,81,062) (1,32,29,994) (2,12,37,000) (1,08,05,510) (22,90,64,288) 

Total Assets 29,08,54,983 76,51,149 8,51,639 1,63,98,000 1,11,62,985 8,35,75,936 

Total 
Liabilities  

55,56,89,314 4,82,211 1,39,81,633 3,71,35,000 2,18,68,495 31,19,40,224 

Investments  - - - - - - 
Turnover 1,00,43,064 - - - - - 
Profit/(Loss) 
before 
taxation 

(3,07,22,873) (1,04,028) (1,73,594) (22,28,174) (15,38,064) (2,92,07,154) 

Provision for 
taxation 

- - - - - - 

Profit/(Loss) 
after taxation 

(3,07,22,873) (1,04,028) (1,73,594) (22,28,174) (15,38,064) (2,92,07,154) 

Proposed 
Dividend 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

% of 
Shareholding 

100 by Resco 
Global Wind 
Services 
Private 
Limited 

100 by 
Resco 
Global 
Wind 
Services 
Private 
Limited 

100 by Resco 
Global Wind 
Services Private 
Limited 

100 by Resco 
Global Wind 
Services 
Private 
Limited 

100 by Resco 
Global Wind 
Services Private 
Limited 

100 by Resco 
Global Wind 
Services 
Private Limited 

 
*The reporting period of all subsidiaries is the same as that of its holding company i.e. 31st March, 2023 

 
Name of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil 
Name of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil 
 
 
 



 

 

Part B- Associates and Joint Ventures  
 
Statement related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures: Nil 

 
Sl. No. Particulars Name 
1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet date 

Not Applicable 

2 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired 
3 Shares of Associates/ Joint Ventures held by the Company on the year end 

Number 

Amount of Investment in Associates/ Joint Venture 

Extent of holding % 
4 Description of how there is significant influence 
5 Reason why the associate/ joint venture is not consolidated 
6 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest Balance Sheet 
7 Profit/ Loss for the year 

i. Considered in consolidation 
ii. Not considered in consolidation 

 
Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil  
Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil 
 
 

 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 

 Nitesh Kumar            Mukesh Manglik 
 Director Director 
 DIN: 10132028 DIN: 07001509 

 
                

 
Date: 26th May, 2023                                                         Uday Shankar Prasad 
Place: Noida                                                                            Company Secretary   



 

 

Annexure -B 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 
 
To,  
The Members,  
Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited 
(U40106GJ2020PTC112187) 
301, ABS Tower Old Padra Road,  
Vadodara – 390007, Gujrat  
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited 
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby 
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on 31st March, 2023, the Company has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent 
based on the management representation letter/ confirmation, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, according to the 
provisions of: 
 
(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;  
(2) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  
(3) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;  

(4) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2021; and  

 

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021. 

 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 
During the period under review, we are informed that the Company was not required to comply 

with the following laws / rules / regulations and consequently was not required to maintain any 

books, papers, Minute books or other records or file any forms / returns under: 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/regulations/aug-2021/securities-and-exchange-board-of-india-issue-and-listing-of-non-convertible-securities-regulations-2021_51764.html
https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/regulations/aug-2021/securities-and-exchange-board-of-india-issue-and-listing-of-non-convertible-securities-regulations-2021_51764.html


 

 

 
(i) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibitions of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 
(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2021; 
(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; 
(vi) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018; 

(5) The listing agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited (BSE) in relation to 
listing of its Non- Convertible Debentures. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 
(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and 
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
We further report that:  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded 
as part of the minutes. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period the company has no events to be reported. 
 

 
For NSP & Associates, 
Company Secretaries 

 
 
 

(Proprietor) 
UDIN: F009028E000692051 

FCS No.: 9028 
C P No.: 10937  

Place: Noida 
Date: 05th July, 2023 
  
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
 



 

 

“Annexure A” 
 
To,  
The Members,  
Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited 
(U40106GJ2020PTC112187) 
301, ABS Tower Old Padra Road,  
Vadodara – 390007, Gujrat 
 
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company and we have reported on the basis of unsigned and unaudited 
Financial Statement for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023.   

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.  

5. The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards are the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

 
 

For NSP & Associates, 
Company Secretaries 

 
 
 

(Proprietor) 
UDIN: F009028E000692051 

FCS No.: 9028 
C P No.: 10937  

Place: Noida 
Date: 05th July, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Annexure C 
 
  
Information as required under Section 134 (3) (m) read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 
 
(A)  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
 

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Nil 
(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy: Nil 
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Nil 

 
(B)  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
 

• Kaizen Improvements: 
 
- Emergency Lighting: 

Automatic Emergency Lighting in Hall-1, M-12 area. We connect emergency lights with 
contactor. MPEB and UPS power connected in contactor so that if any power fails the 
emergency lights becomes ON automatically by UPS supply. 

 
- Clamping system:  

Clamping System made to hold the foam while chamfering. Made a clamping system to 
hold C-cut sheet for chamfering to obtain proper chamfering ratio. 

 
- Wedges cutting modification to reduce Unwanted foam wastage:  
      Cutting of wedges foam along width wise instead of Length wise so that whole sheet can be 

used and there is no wastage. 
 

• Continual QIP projects: 
               Adhesive paste reduction project of WT113-55.2 M: 

- Main shell leading edge side FRP comb type template made to control paste application. 
This resulted into saving of approx. 60 Kg paste/blade. This resulted in total saving of Rs. 
1,07,35,200/ year. 

- Eliminate the putty consumption due to outside vap membrane Impression: 
Earlier vap membrane used to be laid directly on mould. Due to this, the 
aviness/warpages in vap are projected onto blade surface- this resulted into more putty 
consumption with more cycle time to finish. Now we have replaced this vap above all 
layups which has eliminated dryness of UD layers thereby NCRs and rework time. 

 
(C)  THE EXPENDITURE INCURRED ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT: 
 

Nil 
 
(D) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  
 
 Foreign exchange used     - Nil 
 Foreign exchange earned - Nil 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Members of Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited 

 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited (“the 

Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash 

flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its loss, total 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

 

Emphasis of matter  

1. We draw attention to Note 36 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding the balance confirmation 

letters as referred to in the Standard on Auditing (SA) 505 (Revised) 'External Confirmations', were sent to 

balances from banks, trade receivables/payables/advances to vendors and other parties (other than 

disputed parties) and certain party's balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, if 

any will be accounted for on confirmation/reconciliation of the same, which in the opinion of the 

management will not have a material impact. 

 

2. We draw attention to Note 38 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding pending litigation 

matters with Court/Appellate Authorities. Due to the significance of the balance to the financial statements 

as a whole and the involvement of estimates and judgement in the assessment which is being technical in 

nature, the management is of the opinion that the company will succeed in the appeal and there will not 

be any material impact on the statements on account of probable liability vis-a-vis the provisions already 

created in the books. 

 

3. We draw attention to Note 51 to the Standalone Financial Statements which describes that the Company 

has work-in-progress inventory amounting to Rs. 24,477 Lakh for project development, erection & 

commissioning work, and Common infrastructure facilities in different states. The respective State 

Governments are yet to announce the policy on Wind Farm Development. In the view of the management, 



the Company will be able to realize the Inventory on execution of projects once Wind Farm Development 

policy is announced by respective State Governments. 

 

4. We draw attention to Note 53 to the Standalone Financial Statements which describes that the Capital 

work in progress amounting to Rs.10,854 Lakh includes provisional capital expenses of Rs.10,690 Lakhs and 

due to long-term agreement in nature, invoice of the same will be received/recorded in due course. 

 

Our report is not modified with respect to the above matters. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 

matters to be communicated in our report. 

 

The Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Inventory Valuation: 

The Company is primarily in the business of the 

development of Wind Farms and the inventory 

primarily consists of construction materials related 

to Wind Farm development and project under 

development. Inventories are valued at a lower cost 

or net realizable value. There is a risk that inventories 

may be stated at values that are not representative 

of the costs or at values that are more than their net 

realizable value ('NRV'). 

 

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key 

audit matter because the Company held significant 

inventories at the reporting date and a significant 

degree of management judgment and estimation 

was involved in valuing the inventories. 

 

See Note 11 to the standalone financial statements 

In view of the significance of the matter we applied 

the following key audit procedures in this area, 

among others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 

evidence: 

 

• Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the 

design, implementation and operating effectiveness 

of the Company's key internal controls over the 

process for valuation of inventories.  

 

• Comparing the cost of raw materials with supplier 

invoices, on a sample basis. For work-in-progress 

and finished goods, challenging, the key 

assumptions concerning overhead allocation by 

assessing the cost of the items included in overhead 

absorption on a sample basis. 

 

• Testing the cost of materials consumption in 

respect to the project completed based on standards 

costing method (certified by the management) and 

reviewed on regular intervals. 

 

• In connection with NRV testing, selecting inventory 

items, on a sample basis, at the reporting date and 

comparing their carrying value to their subsequent 

selling prices as indicated in sales invoices 

subsequent to the reporting date. 

Litigation Matter 



The Company has certain significant pending legal 

proceedings with Judicial/Quasi-Judicial for various 

complex matters with contractor/transporter, 

customer and other parties, continuing from earlier 

years. 

 

Further, the company has material uncertain tax 

positions including matters under dispute which 

involve significant judgment to determine the 

possible outcome of these disputes. 

 

Refer to Note 38 of the Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

 

Due to the complexity involved in these litigation 

matters, management’s judgement regarding the 

recognition and measurement of provisions for 

these legal proceedings is inherently uncertain and 

might change over time as the outcomes of the legal 

cases are determined. Accordingly, it has been 

considered as a key audit matter. 

In view of the significance of the matter we applied 

the following key audit procedures in this area, 

among others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 

evidence: 

➢ Assessed the management’s position through 

discussions with the in-house legal expert and 

external legal opinions obtained by the Company 

(where considered necessary) on both, the 

probability of success in the aforesaid cases, and 

the magnitude of any potential loss. 

 

➢ Discussed with the management on the 

development of these litigations during the year 

ended March 31, 2023. 

 

➢ Rolled out enquiries to the management of the 

Company and noted the responses received and 

assessed the same. 

 

➢ Assessed the objectivity, independence and 

competence of the Company’s legal counsel 

(where applicable) involved in the process and 

legal experts engaged by the company, if any.  

 

➢ Reviewed the disclosures made by the Company 

in the standalone financial statements in this 

regard and the emphasis given in para 2 of our 

report. 

 

 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the [information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s report including 

Annexures to Board’s report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information (hereinafter referred 

to as “the Reports”), but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. The Reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 

 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated.  

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 

Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 



financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that gives 

a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control.  

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the company has an adequate internal financial controls 

system, with reference to standalone financial statement, in place and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 



report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern.  

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or 

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Other Matter 

The statutory audit was conducted via making arrangements to provide requisite documents/ information 

through an electronic medium. The Company has made available the following information/ records/ 

documents/ explanations to us through e-mail and remote secure network of the Company: -  

 

a) Scanned copies of necessary records/documents deeds, certificates and the related records made 

available electronically through e-mail or remote secure network of the Company; and  

 

b) By way of enquiries through video conferencing, dialogues and discussions over the phone, e-mails and 

similar communication channels.  

 

It has also been represented by the management that the data and information provided electronically for 

the purpose of our audit are correct, complete, reliable and are directly generated from the accounting 

system of the Company, extracted from the records and files, without any further manual modifications so 

as to maintain its integrity, authenticity, readability and completeness. In addition, based on our review of 

the various internal audit reports/inspection reports/other reports (as applicable), nothing has come to our 

knowledge that makes us believe that such an audit procedure would not be adequate. 

 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 



 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has not paid remuneration to its directors during the year. 

  

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the other comprehensive income), the 

Statement of Changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the books of the account.  

 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over the financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us:  

 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 

statements – Refer Note 38 to the financial statements; 

 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for 

material foreseeable losses, 

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 

notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 



kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

 (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 

notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been 

received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or 

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

 (c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement. 

 

v. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the company.  

 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No.  000472N 

 

 

 

 

 

Sandeep Dahiya 

Partner 

Membership No. 505371 

UDIN: 23505371BGRTXJ5203 

Date: May 26, 2023 

Place: New Delhi  



ANNEXURE-ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph - 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements” of our Report of even date.) 

 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 

standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and 

explanations given by the management and the books of account and other records examined by us in the 

normal course of the audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that: - 

 

(i) (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and the situation of property, plant and equipment. 

 

     (B) The company does not have intangible assets hence paragraph 3(i)(a)(B) is not applicable. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of 

its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a 

phased manner. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were 

verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having 

regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verification. 

 

(c)  The company does not have Immovable properties hence paragraph 3(i)(c) is not applicable. 

  

(d) The company is not revaluing its property, plant and Equipment during the year, hence 

paragraph 3(i)(d) is not applicable to the company. 

 

(e) Based on the management representation, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are 

pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence the paragraph 3(i)(e) is not 

applicable on the company. 

 

(ii) (a) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records and in our opinion, the 

management has physically verified the inventory at reasonable intervals, the coverage and 

procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or 

more in the aggregate for each class of inventory have been found by the management. 

 

(b) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, the company has not 

been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees from banks or financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 

 

(iii) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, during the year the company 

has provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 

secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. 

 

(a) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, during the 

year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood 

guarantee, or provided security to any other entity. The details of the same have been given 

below: - 

       (Rs. In lakhs) 



Particulars Guarantees  Security Loans Advances in 

the nature of 

loans  

Aggregate amount granted/ 

provided during the year 

    

- Promoter - - 91,298.73 - 

- Subsidiaries - - 0.06 - 

- Joint Ventures - - - - 

- Associates - - - - 

- Others - 21,920.00 1,100.00 - 

Balance outstanding as at 

balance sheet date in respect 

of the above cases: - 

    

- Promoter - - 6,974.84 - 

- Subsidiaries - - 5,184.25 - 

- Joint Ventures - - - - 

- Associates - - - - 

- Others - 21,920.00   1,111.11 - 

  

(b) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, the security 

given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 

and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest. 

 

(c) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, as the 

company has given loan on repayable on demand accordingly the schedule of repayment of 

principal & interest and repayment and receipts thereof are not applicable.  

 

(d) There is no overdue amount outstanding for more than ninety days, hence paragraph 3(iii)(d) 

is not applicable. 

 

(e) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, there is no 

loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been 

renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to 

the same parties. 

 

(f) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, the company 

has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand or without 

specifying any terms or period of repayment. The details of the same are given below: - 

 

 All Parties Promoters Related parties 

Aggregate amount of loans/advances in 

nature of loans 

- Repayable on demand (A) 

 

 

13,273.12 

 

 

6,974.84 

 

 

5,184.25 

- Agreement does not specify any 

terms or period of repayment (B) 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Total (A+B) 13,273.12 6,974.84 5,184.25 

Percentage of loans/advances in nature of 

loans to the total loans 

100.00% 52.55% 39.06% 

 



 

(iv) In our opinion, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security provisions of section 185 

and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. 

 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposited; hence 

paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable. 

 

(vi) To the best of our knowledge, the company is not required to maintain cost records under the 

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central 

Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, paragraph 

3(vi) of the order is not applicable. 

 

(vii) (a) On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted/accrued in 

the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, 

Provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, 

duty of excise, value-added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally been regularly 

deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities, though there has been 

a slight delay in a few cases, to the extent applicable to it. 

 

In our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, 

value-added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in 

arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 

payable except as mentioned below in the table: 

 

 

Name of the Statute 
Nature of 

the dues 

Amount 

(Rs. In 

Lakhs) 

Period to which 

the amount 

relates 

Due Date 
Date of 

payment 

Remarks, 

if any 

The Employee Provident 

Funds & Miscellaneous 

Provision Act,1952 

Provident 

Fund 
0.19 Prior to April-22 

Within 15 

days of 

next month 

-  

Labour Welfare Fund Act 
Labour 

Welfare Fund 
0.03 

April 22 to 

august 22 

15th July 

2022 
-  

Professional Tax Acts of 

respective states 

Professional 

Tax 
0.92 

April 22 to 

august 22 

15th 

September 

2023 

-  

 

(b) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, the details of the dues 

referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as 

under: - 

Name of the 

Statute 

Nature of dues Amount  

(In Rs.) 

Period to which 

the amount 

relates 

Forum where the 

dispute is 

pending 

NIL 

 

(viii) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, there are no transactions 

that are there which is not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 

1961), hence clause 3 (viii) is not applicable to the company. 



 

(ix) (a) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records and in our opinion, there 

is no default in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to 

any lender.   

 

(b)According to the information and explanations are given to us and on the basis of our audit 

procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or 

financial institution or government or any government authority.  

 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they 

were obtained. 

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the procedures performed by 

us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no 

funds raised on a short-term basis have, prima facie, been used for long-term purposes by the 

company. 

 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 

financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from 

any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures. 

 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 

report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 

debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

utilized funds raised by way of preferential allotment or private placement of shares for the 

purposes for which they were raised. 

 

(xi) (a) In our opinion, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or 

reported during the course of our audit. 

 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by 

the company during the year. 

 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company. Hence, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xiii) Based on our examination of the records of the Company and in our opinion, transactions with the 

related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details 



of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the 

applicable accounting standards. 

 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period 

under audit. 

 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 

company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 

with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the company. 

 

(xvi) (a) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be 

registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

 

(b) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not conducted any 

non-banking financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration from 

the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 

(c) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Core Investment 

company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and accordingly 

there is no requirement to fulfill the criteria of a CIC. 

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is not more than one CIC as 

part of the group. However, one more group company meets the criteria for CIC company but the 

same is already registered as an “NBFC-Investment & Credit Company”, accordingly not considered 

here for reporting number of CICs in the group. 

 

(xvii) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has incurred cash losses 

amounting to Rs. 6,960.87 lakhs and Rs. 3,358.96 lakhs in the financial year and in the immediately 

preceding financial year.  

 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, this clause 

is not applicable. 

 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities and 

other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors 

and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 

viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 

the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and 

when they fall due. 

 



(xx) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, section 135 of the Act is not applicable 

to company hence, the paragraph 3(xx) of the order is not applicable. 

 

 

 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No.  000472N 

 

 

 

 

 

Sandeep Dahiya 

Partner 

Membership No. 505371 

UDIN: 23505371BGRTXJ5203 

Date: May 26, 2023 

Place: New Delhi 

  



ANNEXURE – B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RESCO GLOBAL WIND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statement under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Resco Global Wind Services 

Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 



as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No.  000472N 

 

 

 

 

 

Sandeep Dahiya 

Partner 

Membership No. 505371 

UDIN: 23505371BGRTXJ5203 

Date: May 26, 2023 

Place: New Delhi 









































































































































INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Members of Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited 

 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the Consolidated financial statements of Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and 

Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement 

of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as 

at March 31, 2023, and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for 

the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the 

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 

the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with these requirements and the ICAI Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated 

financial statements. 

 

Emphasis of matter  

1. We draw attention to Note 57 to the consolidated financial Statement which describes that the 

Capital work in progress amounting to Rs.10,854 Lakh includes provisional capital expenses of 

Rs.10,690 Lakhs and due to long-term agreement in nature, invoice of the same will be 

received/recorded in due course. 

 

2. We draw attention to Note 56 to the consolidated financial statement regarding pending litigation 

matters with Court/Appellate Authorities. Due to the significance of the balance to the financial 

statements as a whole and the involvement of estimates and judgement in the assessment which is 

being technical in nature, the management is of the opinion that the company will succeed in the 

appeal and there will not be any material impact on the statements on account of probable liability 

vis-a-vis the provisions already created in the books. 

3. We draw attention to Note 55 to the consolidated financial statement which describes that the 

Company has work-in-progress inventory amounting Rs.25,704 Lakh for project development, 

erection & commissioning work and Common infrastructure facilities in different states. The 

respective State Governments are yet to announce the policy on Wind Farm Development. In the view 



of the management, the Company will be able to realize the Inventory on execution of projects once 

Wind Farm Development policy is announced by respective State Governments. 

 

4. We draw attention to Note 38 to the consolidated statement regarding the balance confirmation 

letters as referred to in the Standard on Auditing (SA) 505 (Revised) 'External Confirmations', were 

sent to balances from banks, trade receivables/payables/advances to vendors and other parties (other 

than disputed parties) and certain party's balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. 

Adjustments, if any will be accounted for on confirmation/reconciliation of the same, which in the 

opinion of the management will not have a material impact. 

 

Our report is not modified in respect of above matters. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described 

below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

The Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Inventory Valuation: 

The Group is primarily in the business of the 

development of Wind Farms and the inventory 

primarily consists of construction materials 

related to Wind Farm development and project 

under development. Inventories are valued at a 

lower cost or net realizable value. There is a risk 

that inventories may be stated at values that are 

not representative of the costs or at values that 

are more than their net realizable value ('NRV'). 

 

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key 

audit matter because the Company held 

significant inventories at the reporting date and a 

significant degree of management judgment and 

estimation was involved in valuing the inventories. 

 

See Note 10 to the consolidated financial 

statements 

In view of the significance of the matter we applied 

the following key audit procedures in this area, 

among others to obtain sufficient appropriate 

audit evidence: 

 

• Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the 

design, implementation and operating 

effectiveness of the Company's key internal 

controls over the process for valuation of 

inventories.  

 

• Comparing the cost of raw materials with 

supplier invoices, on a sample basis. For work-in-

progress and finished goods, challenging, the key 

assumptions concerning overhead allocation by 

assessing the cost of the items included in 

overhead absorption on a sample basis. 

 

• Comparing the cost of materials consumption in 

respect to the project completed with standards 

costing method (certified by the management) 

and reviewed on regular intervals, on a sample 

basis. For projects in progress, challenging, the key 

assumptions concerning overhead allocation by 

assessing the cost of the items included in 

overhead absorption on a sample basis. 

 



• In connection with NRV testing, selecting 

inventory items, on a sample basis, at the 

reporting date and comparing their carrying value 

to their subsequent selling prices as indicated in 

sales invoices subsequent to the reporting date. 

Litigation Matter 

The Group has certain significant pending legal 

proceedings with Judicial/Quasi-Judicial for 

various complex matters with 

contractor/transporter, customer and other 

parties, continuing from earlier years. 

 

Further, the group has material uncertain tax 

positions including matters under dispute which 

involve significant judgment to determine the 

possible outcome of these disputes. 

 

Refer to Note 37 of the Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

 

Due to the complexity involved in these litigation 

matters, management’s judgement regarding the 

recognition and measurement of provisions for 

these legal proceedings is inherently uncertain 

and might change over time as the outcomes of 

the legal cases are determined. Accordingly, it has 

been considered as a key audit matter. 

In view of the significance of the matter we applied 

the following key audit procedures in this area, 

among others to obtain sufficient appropriate 

audit evidence: 

➢ Assessed the management’s position through 

discussions with the in-house legal expert and 

external legal opinions obtained by the 

Company (where considered necessary) on 

both, the probability of success in the 

aforesaid cases, and the magnitude of any 

potential loss. 

 

➢ Discussed with the management on the 

development of these litigations during the 

year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

➢ Rolled out enquiries to the management of 

the Company and noted the responses 

received and assessed the same. 

 

➢ Assessed the objectivity, independence and 

competence of the Company’s legal counsel 

(where applicable) involved in the process and 

legal experts engaged by the company, if any.  

 

➢ Reviewed the disclosures made by the 

Company in the standalone financial 

statements in this regard and para 2 of 

‘Emphasis of Matter’ of our report. 

 

 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s report 

including Annexures to Board’s report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Reports”), but does not include the Consolidated financial statements 

and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 



In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated.  

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of 

these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and 

fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other 

comprehensive income) and consolidated cash flows of the Group including in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 

section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 

responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 

statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.  

 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 

included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 

overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 



• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has an adequate 

internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated financial statement in place 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 

or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of 

the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of 

which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated 

financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. 

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 

evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 

Consolidated financial statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 

entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors 



regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

 

Other Matter 

The statutory audit was conducted via making arrangements to provide requisite documents/ 

information through an electronic medium. The Company has made available the following 

information/ records/ documents/ explanations to us through e-mail and remote secure network of 

the Company: -  

 

a) Scanned copies of necessary records/documents deeds, certificates and the related records made 

available electronically through e-mail or remote secure network of the Company; and  

 

b) By way of enquiries through video conferencing, dialogues and discussions over the phone, e-mails 

and similar communication channels.  

 

It has also been represented by the management that the data and information provided 

electronically for the purpose of our audit are correct, complete, reliable and are directly generated 

from the accounting system of the Company, extracted from the records and files, without any further 

manual modifications so as to maintain its integrity, authenticity, readability and completeness. In 

addition, based on our review of the various internal audit reports/inspection reports/other reports 

(as applicable), nothing has come to our knowledge that makes us believe that such an audit 

procedure would not be adequate. 

 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 

A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has not paid remuneration to its directors during the year. 

  



3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements. 

 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books. 

 

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including the other 

comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of the account maintained for the purpose 

of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.  

 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 

as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the 

reports of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group 

companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding 

Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure “B”. 

 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us:  

 

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 

consolidated financial position of the Group and its subsidiaries – Refer Note 37 to the 

consolidated financial statements. 

 

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the 

applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts  

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies incorporated in 

India. 

 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other 

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 

by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India to or in any other 

person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 



whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

 (b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other 

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Holding 

Company, and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India from any person(s) or entity(ies), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, 

and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 

or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

 (c) Based on the audit procedures that has considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused them to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement. 

 

v. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, and its 

subsidiary companies incorporated in India.  

 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of 

account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility 

is applicable to the Group with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 

11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023. 

 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No.  000472N 

 

 

 

Sandeep Dahiya 

Partner 

Membership No. 505371 

UDIN: 23505371BGRTXK6499 

Date: May 26, 2023 

Place: New Delhi 

  



ANNEXURE-ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph - 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements” of our Report of even date.) 

 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 

Consolidated financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and 

explanations given by the management and the books of account and other records examined by us 

in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that: - 

 

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, there have been no qualifications 

or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

(CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements, except for the 

following: 

Sr. 

No. 

Names CIN Holding 

Company/Subsidiary 

 

Clause number 

of the CARO 

report which is 

qualified or 

adverse 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 

1 RESCO Global Wind 

Service Private 

Limited 

U40106GJ2020PTC112187 Holding Company Clause vii(a) and 

Clause (xvii) 

2 Marut Shakti Energy 

India Limited 

U04010GJ2000PLC083233 Subsidiary Company Clause vii(a) and 

Clause (xvii) 

3 RBRK Investments 

Limited 

U40100TG2005PLC047851 Subsidiary Company Clause vii(a) and 

Clause (xvii) 

4 Sarayu Wind Power 

(Kondapuram) 

Private Limited 

U40108TG2012PTC078981 Subsidiary Company Clause vii(a) and 

Clause (xvii) 

5 Sarayu Wind Power 

(Tallimadugula) 

Private Limited 

U40108TG2012PTC078732 Subsidiary Company Clause vii(a) and 

Clause (xvii) 

6 Satviki Energy 

Private Limited 

U40100AP2013PTC089795 Subsidiary Company Clause (xvii) 

7 Vinirrmaa Energy 

Generation Private 

Limited 

U40109TG2007PTC056146 Subsidiary Company Clause vii(a) and 

Clause (xvii) 

 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No.  000472N 

 

 

Sandeep Dahiya (Partner) 

Membership No. 505371 

UDIN: 23505371BGRTXK6499 

Date: May 26, 2023 

Place: New Delhi 



ANNEXURE – B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated financial statement 

under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for 

the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and 

its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, which are 

companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective 

company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, 

the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 

as required under the Act. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 

Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects.  

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 

being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 

incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

 

 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No.  000472N 

 

 

 

Sandeep Dahiya 

Partner 

Membership No. 505371 

UDIN: 23505371BGRTXK6499 

Date: May 26, 2023 

Place: New Delhi 






































































































































